
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

September 20, 2022 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  September 19, 2022 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

PERSONNEL 

1. To authorize the Mayor to negotiate salary and benefits for the hiring of a Community Program 

Director/Administrative Assistant to the Mayor. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Representative Ryan Bourriaque - Legislative update and special presentation. 

2. Mr. Holden Hoggatt - candidate for Congress. 

MINUTES 

1. To approve the minutes from the August 31, 2022 special City Council meeting and the Committee 

meeting held on September 6, 2022. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Public hearing to receive comments from the public regarding the proposed ordinance to amend 

Section 12-35, Authority to take possession of abandoned motor vehicles. 

2. To accept the recommendation of the Ordinance Committee from their meeting held on September 6, 

2022, to adopt an ordinance to amend Section 12-35, Authority to take possession of abandoned 

vehicles. 

3. To rescind Resolution R13-33 adopted at the October 15, 2013 City Council meeting that created the 

Parks and Recreation Board. 

4. To authorize the Mayor to execute the Letter of Intent as a mutual good faith agreement and to 

exercise reasonable efforts to finalize a Donation Agreement between Riviana Foods, Inc. and the 

City of Abbeville for the Mill Properties at 405 S. Washington Street and 406 S. Main Street. 

5. To adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement with DOTD pertaining to the 

Construct Hangar Development Area-Phase I (Design) grant. 

6. To adopt a resolution requesting financial assistance from the State of Louisiana under the fiscal year 

2022-2023 Capital Outlay Program.  

7. To adopt a resolution appointing Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. as the Alternate Director for the 

Board of Directors of LEPA. 

8. Discussion and possible action to lift the moratorium on food trucks. 

9. To authorize the Mayor to execute the temporary housing and shelter assistance program form from 

the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness. 

10. To submit two names to fill one vacancy on the Abbeville Harbor and Terminal Board. 

11. To ratify the purchase of poles for stock from Techline in the amount of $14,745.88. 

12. To ratify the authorization for repairs to the Airport Lift Station given to Griner Drilling in the amount of 

$9,220.00. 

1



13. To approve a special event permit for St. Mary Magdalen Church to hold a public gathering at 

Magdalen Square and then a procession to St. Mary Magdalen Church to honor the Holy Relics of St. 

Mary Magdalen on October 26, 2022 from 6:00 PM to 7:30 PM. 

14. To set the permit fee for excavations at $25.00 per permit.  If a permit is not obtained prior to 

excavation, then a penalty of 4 times the fee ($100.00) will be charged and the excavation will not be 

allowed to continue until the permit and fees have been obtained. 

15. To authorize the Mayor to engage the services of The Sellers Group to develop a handicapped 

accessibility plan for A. A. Comeaux Park and to negotiate their fee for said plan. 

16. Discussion on how to proceed with Park use notifications - Mayor Roslyn White. 

17. Annual Rotary Club PO Boy Sale preparation and pick up to be held in Magdalen Square on 

November 18, 2022 from 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM - Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

18. To adopt a requesting resolution for the Capital Improvement Plan for the airport. 

19. To approve estimate for partial payment number 2 in the amount of $165,968.10 payable to Glenn 

Lege Construction, LLC for the Rehabilitation of the T-Hangar Taxilanes & Apron Areas Project. 

20. To approve plan change No. 2 for the Rehabilitation of the T-Hangar Taxilanes & Apron Areas project 

to adjust the contract time. 

21. To approve a special event permit for T & T Sickle Cell Trail Riders to access City Streets from 2901 

Rodeo Road to S. Airport Road for a trail ride pending receipt of all required special event paperwork. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Attorney 

3.        Public Works Director 

4.        Parks and Recreation Director 

5.        Mayor 

6.        Police Chief 

7.        Fire Chief 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Roslyn White's office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

August 31, 2022 

 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on August 31, 2022 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony Hardy   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

Marie Buteaux, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent 

Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

    Gerald Gaspard, American Legion     

         

Mayor White asked Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. to lead the assembly in prayer.  She asked 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Mayor White stated that we are here for this special City Council meeting to address three issues. 

She asked if there were any comments from the public about the agenda item. There were none. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to appoint 

Bart Broussard as the City Attorney and to authorize the Mayor to execute an employment 

contract with Mr. Broussard.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White stated that the contract lists the duties that he will provide for $5,000.00 per month.  

Councilman Touchet stated that we should not be paying our attorney for administrative things.  

You want them to be performing law.  We have all of our employees that need to do ethics and 

sexual harassment training.  They can do those online.  Mayor White stated that we have become 

very spoiled by having an attorney in-house.  She met with Kathy and we will have a discussion 

with the staff to contact Kathy or her first before we consult the attorney.  There were a lot things 

that Ike was handling that were more administrative because he was in-house.  The list on the 

employment contract is a fair list and our employees and staff have been very welcoming to the 

idea of reproportioning the administrative duties.  Councilman Campbell stated that there are 

some sections of the law that require specialties.  If there is something that comes up that Bart is 

not trained in that specialty, will he be able to get some help from other attorneys?  Bart stated 

yes.  He is looking at the file right now regarding reapportionment and if a federal lawsuit based 

on civil rights is brought before federal court, that is something that the Council would have to 

seek specialized representation.  Mayor White stated if that happens Bart will advise us to seek 

special counsel and it would come before the City Council for approval.   

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Carlton Campbell and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to appoint Mr. 

Ronald W. Melebeck as the City Prosecutor and to authorize the Mayor to execute the 

employment with Mr. Melebeck.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet stated that the monthly fee we will pay Mr. Melebeck is $3,000.00.  Hiring 

these two attorneys will be a cost savings of $41,000.00 per year.   

 

3



2 
 

Mr. Gerald Gaspard asked at what point will these attorneys charge over the cap.  Mayor White 

stated if we ask them to do a duty that is not in the contract.  There may be something that we 

have not yet thought about. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

quote from Municipal and Industrial Chlorination, LLC in the amount of $10,275.00 for two 

Scaletron cylinder scale bases and a dual controller for the Water Treatment Plant to replace 

those that were damaged as a result of a lightning strike and to pay the expense from City Sales 

Tax Fund general ledger code 425600.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor White stated that there was a lightning strike last weekend, possibly Saturday, at the 

Water Treatment Plant.  We have found several issues that we are working on.  It has taken us a 

week but we have narrowed down the root cause of the alarms.  A port on the PLC has been 

damaged.  The PLC is essentially the brain of the entire automated system.  This has triggered 

several alarms.  We began using another port on the PLC and it appears to have remedied the 

alarm issues so far.  In addition to this we have found that the trunnions and scales that hold our 

chlorine cylinders are damaged and that is a safety hazard to not have those in operation.  We 

felt like this was an emergency item.  Chris stated that one of the best things the Council has done 

is hiring Marie.  She is on the top of her game.  Marie has told him that our parameters have 

changed.  She did her homework.  We called in some guys to check it out and Marie was 100% 

right.  Marie stated that we have 4 spaces where we have cylinders of chlorine and we like to have 

those on rolling trunnions for safety issues.  We need these scales because we don’t want to have 

an interruption in our chlorine flow.  We have one scale but you will have an interruption in 

chlorine flow.  We need to make sure that when a cylinder is empty so that we can make sure that 

we have another cylinder on standby.  This would be the simplest and safest way.  If we have 

these scales and trunnions in place with the rollers, once we deliver the chlorine, we can set the 

cylinders down and can align 6 to 12 and we don’t have to touch them again until they are empty.  

This will reduce handling and any chance for any accident or any unforeseen problems.  Having 

the rollers increases our safety precautions by so much.  It would take two to three weeks for 

delivery.  Mayor White stated that she did an orientation at the Water Treatment Plant a couple 

of weeks ago before this lightning strike and she sat with Marie and talked about her needs at 

the plant now, in five years and her long-term goals.  We just submitted an application for over a 

$1,000,000 grant for the Water Plant.  At that visit, Marie told me that her most immediate need 

are these trunnions and scales.  I asked Marie if this was part of the water sector grant and Marie 

stated that she did not know because no one had ever asked her what she needed.  We added 

this as a line item in the grant before we submitted it.  We couldn’t foresee that the lightning 

strike that would take out one of the scales and that is why we are moving it ahead.   Councilman 

Broussard asked if our insurance company has been notified.  Mayor White stated they have been 

put on notice that we intend to file a claim. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

4



1  

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting 

September 6, 2022 

 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on September 6, 

2022 at 5:15 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Roslyn R. White, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Carlton Campbell, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Tony 

Hardy 

 

Members Absent: None 

 
 

Also Present: Bart Broussard, City Attorney 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Mike Hardy, Police Chief 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

 Tommy Picard, Parks & Recreation Director, QSA 
 

Mayor White stated we are here for an Ordinance meeting chaired by Councilman Tony 

Hardy.  She asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item.  There were 

none.  She turned the floor over to Councilman Hardy 

 

Councilman Hardy stated we are here to consider a proposed ordinance to amend Section 12-

35, Authority to take possession of abandoned motor vehicles.  Bart Broussard stated that Sarah 

approached him and stated that she has been having a problem for years regarding abandoned, 

junked vehicles sitting on people’s property or on public roads.  Every time she went to remove 

them, we could not because our ordinance did not allow for it.  The third parties that we relied 

on did not feel they were empowered to remove them on behalf of the City.  Mayor White stated 

that we would send in a towing company to remove the vehicle from private property, the tow 

company wanted some type of official letter from us and we felt that there our ordinances had 

some loopholes that we felt that we needed to sew up to be able to safely provide that to them 

and for them to feel confident that they can go on the private property and remove the vehicle.  

This pertains to those individuals who have an abundance of vehicles that have been sitting on 

private property and are accumulating as junk.  This will give us a little more ground to have 

something official that the vehicle can be removed by a third party.  We were not able to find a 

company that was will to go on private property to remove the vehicle without this.  

Councilwoman Broussard asked if there is a timeframe for a vehicle to be sitting on private 

property.  Bart stated that there is nothing in the ordinances that state how long it has to sit 

there but there is a 10-day notice to the title owner of the land or the title owner of the vehicle 

that you have to give to them before removal.  Councilman Campbell asked about those vehicles 

that are abandoned but are still mortgaged.  If we remove those vehicles, who will we assess 

the costs?  Bart stated that if the vehicle is mortgaged in any way, the mortgage company should 

be trying to seize the vehicle.  We would have to address those issues on a case-by-case basis.  

His intention with this ordinance is to add two additional paragraphs specifically stating what 

is prohibited and what the City can do and the timeframe to give notice.  Now, the City will 

have the authority to issue a letter or notice to the third-party tow company giving them the 

authority to remove the vehicle.  Mayor White read the proposed language as follows:  The 

storing or abandoning of junk, wrecked or used automobiles or motor vehicles, or any part or 

parts thereof, on any vacant lot, or any portion of an occupied lot, neutral ground, street or 

sidewalk, withing the municipality shall be prohibited.  The city may take into custody any 

motor vehicle found abandoned on public or private property.  The city may employ its own 

personnel, equipment and facilities or may employ persons, equipment and facilities for the 

purpose of removing, preserving and storing abandoned motor vehicles.  The city may assess 

the cost of removing any of the aforementioned described property to the title owner of the 

vehicle or title owner of the property.  Notice shall be given to the title owner by sending a 

registered or certified letter, properly addressed, return receipt requested, at his/her last known 

address, giving said owner 10 days to remove the vehicle.  Chief Hardy suggested that when 

we prepare the letter to give to the third-party tow company that we look to other municipalities 

to see what type of letter they are using.  Councilman Broussard stated that we are not talking 

5



2  

about garaged, fenced project cars here.  Bart stated that we could handle each situation on a 

case-by-case basis using common sense. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to 

recommend to the City Council to adopt an ordinance amending Section 12-35, Authority to 

take possession of abandoned motor vehicles, at their next meeting scheduled for September 

20, 2022.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor White declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Roslyn R. White 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

6



7



8



                        P. O. BOX 2636  •  HOUSTON, TEXAS 77252 

 TELEPHONE    (713) 529-3251  
RIVIANA FOODS INC. FACSIMILE    (713) 529-1661  
   
  
   
 

 
 

      LETTER OF INTENT 
 

September 8, 2022 
 

VIA EMAIL  
 
City of Abbeville, Louisiana 
101 N. State St. 
Abbeville, LA 70510 
 
Attn:  The Honorable Roslyn R. White  
           (ros@roslynwhite.com)  

 

 
 Re: 405 South Washington and 406 S. Main Street, Abbeville, Louisiana  
 
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

This letter will evidence our mutual good faith agreement to exercise reasonable efforts to 
formalize and execute a Donation Agreement (the “Donation”) within sixty (60) days (the “Negotiation 
Period”) after the date of your execution of this letter (the “Effective Date”).  The terms and provisions set 
forth in this letter will be part of the Donation.  Any terms and provisions not set forth herein may be added 
to the Donation as mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

1. Donee:  City of Abbeville, Louisiana 

2. Donor:  Riviana Foods Inc., a Delaware corporation 

3. Property:  405 South Washington and 406 S. Main Street, Abbeville, Louisiana 

4. Closing Date:  Ninety (90) days from the Effective Date. 

5. Transaction.  Subject to the mutual agreement of the parties, Donor agrees to convey and 
donate to Donee, for $1, all of Donor’s right, title, and interest in the Property, including without limitation, 
all buildings, improvements, component parts and all movable and intangible property located thereon 
and/or related thereto.   

6. Representations and Warranties. THE DONATION AND THE ACT OF DONATION 
CONTEMPLATED THEREIN WILL NOT INCLUDE ANY WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER BY 
DONOR, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. DONEE ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE 

9



PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT FOR THE PROPERTY DATED AUGUST, 2022 
WHICH INDICATES THAT THE PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO SEVERAL RECOGNIZED 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS AND CONTAINS CERTAIN ASBESTOS CONTAINING 
MATERIALS AND POTENTIALLY LEAD BASED PAINT FURTHER BASED UPON SAMPLING 
AND ANALYSES CONDUCTED BY AMONG OTHER PARTIES, THE LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT 
OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, CERTAIN HAZARDOUS AND OR REGULATED 
SUBSTANCES ARE OR MAY BE PRESENT ON THE PROPERTY.  The Act of Donation will 
expressly provide that the sale is “AS-IS”, with no warranties by Donor whatsoever, in form and substance 
satisfactory to Donor. Donee shall waive all rights in warranty or redhibition implied under Louisiana law.  
Further, Donee shall waive and release and covenant not to sue Donee with regard to the Property’s 
condition, including without limitation its environmental condition and shall indemnify and hold Donor 
harmless from any and all claims and liabilities including without limitation strict liabilities arising under 
statue or otherwise) related to the Property whether based upon facts and circumstances currently in 
existence and/or arising on or after the Closing Date, including all claims or liabilities in any way related to 
the presence of hazardous or regulated  substances or wastes on the Property.  

7. Access for Investigation and Studies.  During the term hereof, and provided that Donee has 
provided Donor with a Certificate of Insurance satisfactory to Donor, Donee shall have the right the right 
to enter upon the Property solely for due diligence purposes.  Donee shall not have the right to conduct any 
invasive or environmental testing on the Property whatsoever, without the prior written consent of Donor, 
which may be withheld in the sole discretion of Donor.  Donee shall indemnify Donor from any and all 
claims and liabilities arising from Donee’s or its agents’ entry on the Property.   

8. Post Closing Obligations.  From and after the Closing, Donor understands, covenants and 
agrees it shall not conduct invasive environmental sampling on the Property, except to the extent required 
by applicable laws or rules. 

9. Closing Costs.  The Donation shall provide for each party to each pay its own closing costs.  
Real estate taxes, assessments, and any items of income and expense shall be prorated as of the Closing 
Date. 

10. Louisiana Law Governs.  The provisions of this letter, and those of the Donation, shall be 
construed according to, and otherwise governed by Louisiana law without reference to principles of choice 
of law. 

11. Counterparts.  This letter may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

12. Non-Binding Nature of Letter.  It is understood that this is merely a Letter of Intent and 
does not constitute a binding obligation on either of Donor or Donee.  The parties shall not be contractually 
bound unless and until the parties consummate the Donation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
indemnity specified in Section 7 hereof shall be binding upon Donee, during the term hereof and for one 
(1) year hereafter.   

  

 

(continued on next page) 

10



 

If the terms hereof are acceptable, please sign one (1) copy of this letter below and return it to us.  
This Letter of Intent will be effective only if it is executed by a duly authorized representative of Donor, 
and an executed copy is returned to Donee on or before 5:00 p.m. on September 23, 2022. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
RIVIANA FOODS INC., a Delaware corporation 
 
By:       
Name:  Enrique Zaragoza 
Title:  President & Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
AGREED this _____ day of September, 2022 
 
CITY OF ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA 
 
By:___________________________ 
Name:________________________ 
Title:_________________________ 
 

11



(Whether Louisiana State Rice Milling Company was headquartered in Abbeville from the 
beginning is uncertain.) In addition to the two surviving rice mills being important because they 
illustrate the foundation Abbeville’s economy, they are important as rare surviving examples 
of a type within the southwestern Louisiana rice belt. While there are numerous rice mills 
surviving in the area, it is exceedingly rare to find historic examples with any degree of 
integrity, much less two large brick facilities, one of which is elaborately detailed for an 
industrial building. The only other historic rice mills with any degree of integrity known to the 
SHPO are in the Crowley Historic District (NR), and in New Iberia, the Conrad Rice Mill (NR). 
These, however, pale in comparison to the two in Abbeville in terms of representing the large 
scale of the rice industry during the boom years 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



 The following was offered by                                                                             , seconded 

by                                                                                      , and duly resolved: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

FROM THE STATE OF LOUISIANA 

UNDER THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 

CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana has announced that the City of Abbeville Fiscal Year 

2022-2023 Capital Outlay application for Sidewalk and Street Improvements on Graceland 

Avenue has been funded; and 

 WHEREAS, the Capital Outlay Program offers grants to eligible municipalities and 

parishes for a wide range of projects to improve public health, public safety, living conditions 

and for economic development purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Abbeville has committed to a local match of twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the total project cost. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Councilmen of the City of Abbeville 

that the Honorable Roslyn White, Mayor, is hereby authorized to sign all documents related to 

the 2022-2023 Capital Outlay Program, including an engineering agreement with Sellers & 

Associates, Inc. 

 THEREUPON, the above resolution was approved. 

****************************************************************************** 

 

C E R T I F I CA T E 

 

 I, Kathy Faulk, Clerk of the City of Abbeville, do hereby certify that the above is a true 

and exact copy of a resolution adopted by the Councilmen of the City of Abbeville on  

                                             , 2022, at which time a quorum was present and voting. 

 

 

 

 

KATHY FAULK, CLERK 

CITY OF ABBEVILLE LOUISIANA 

 

 

N:\DATA\9233\9233-05 COP 2022-2023 Application\9233 Resolution.wpd 

26



27



28



29



30



 

 

 
 

 CITY OF ABBEVILLE 
 
 
RESOLUTION NUMBER:                                                                                         Date:  September 20, 2022              
 

R   E   S   O   L   U   T   I   O   N 
 
 
WHEREAS, Title 2 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 provides that cities, towns, parishes, and other 
political subdivisions of this State may separately or jointly acquire, establish, construct, expand, own, lease, 
control, equip, improve, maintain, operate, regulate, and police airports and landing fields for the use of aircraft; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, Division of Aviation (formerly 
the LA DOTD-OAPT) is charged by Title 2 with the responsibility for the development of aviation facilities within 
the State to foster air commerce and to safeguard the interests of those engaged in all phases of the aviation industry 
and of the general public; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Abbeville, Louisiana, hereinafter referred to as “Sponsor”, has completed an FAA and 
DOTD approved Master Plan, Action Plan, and/or Airport Layout Plan which outlines the specific future 
development of the Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial Airport; and, the Sponsor is desirous of implementing a 
portion of the approved Plan recommendations which provide for the critically needed improvements as stated 
below to substantially improve the safety and usability of the Airport, but does not have sufficient funds of its own 
required for completing the needed improvements; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the LA DOTD, Division of Aviation is authorized by Title 2 to expend funds for the construction or 
enlargement of airports for the safety and advancement of aeronautics; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

SECTION I 
 
That the Sponsor does hereby formally request that the LA DOTD, Division of Aviation provide funds required to 
complete the airport improvements at the Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial Airport specifically as described in the 
Capital Improvement Program Application for State Financial Assistance dated September 20, 2022. 
 

SECTION II 
 
That the said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation be and is hereby assured that all necessary servitudes, rights-of-way, 
rights of ingress and egress and means thereof will be furnished by the Sponsor and the titles thereto will be valid 
and indefeasible, and that the Sponsor will assume ownership, financial reporting, and complete responsibility for 
the maintenance and upkeep of the airport after completion of said improvement. 
 

SECTION III 
 
That the Sponsor will save and hold the said LA DOTD, Division of Aviation, its officers, agents, and employees 
harmless from any liability or claim for damages arising out of the project, including death or injuries to third parties 
including, but not limited to, liability or claim for damages out of the negligence of said LA DOTD, Division of 
Aviation, its officers, agents, or employees, and expressly agrees to defend any suit of any nature brought against the 
LA DOTD, Division of Aviation as a result of this project. 
 

 
 

31



 

 

SECTION IV 
 
That the Mayor of the Sponsor be and is hereby authorized and directed to evidence this agreement by affixing his 
signature at the place provided therefore on this resolution and on subsequent related documents/agreements as 
required by the rules and regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration and the State of Louisiana and the 
Clerk is hereby authorized to attest said execution. 
 

SECTION V 
 
That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption.   
 
The City Council for the Sponsor of the Parish of Vermilion met in regular session on this date.  The aforesaid 
resolution was offered by ______________ and seconded by _______________.  The aforesaid resolution, having 
been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows: 
 
 YEAS: _______ NAYS: ________ ABSENT: ________. 
 
WHEREUPON, the resolution was declared adopted on the 20th day of September, 2022.                          
                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                       CITY OF ABBEVILLE                         
 

 
BY:_______________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  (Signature) 
 

__________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                       (Typed or Printed Name) 
 

TITLE:____________________________________ 
 
 

ATTEST:__________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                  (Signature) 
 

__________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                     (Title) 
 
 
 
 
 

32



 

 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
IT IS HEREBY certified that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed by the Sponsor of Vermilion 
Parish, Louisiana in regular session convened on this, the 20th day of September, 2022. 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                    (Signature of Secretary of Sponsor) 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                          (Title) 

33


	Top
	1.	Mayor's secretary
	1.	Ryan Bourriaque
	2.	Holden Hoggatt
	1.	minutes
	August 31, 2022 special meeting
	September 6, 2022 Committee meeting

	1.	Public hearing ordinance
	Ordinance-abandoned vehicles

	2.	Ordinance abandoned vehicles
	3.	Rescind resolution R13-33-Park and rec board
	Resolution R13-33

	4.	Riviana
	LOI - Riviana - City of Abbeville
	Whether Louisiana State Rice Milling Company was headquartered in Abbeville from the

	5.	Airport grant
	Agreement for Contruct Hangar Development Area-Phase I-design

	6.	Capital outlay-Graceland Street
	Abbeville Resolution - Revised 9.12.22

	7.	LEPA alternate director
	Alternate director-LEPA

	8.	Food trucks
	9.	Temporary housing
	Temporary emergency housing form

	10.	Harbor and terminal board
	11.	Poles
	Techline

	12.	Airport lift station
	Griner Drilling

	13.	Special event permit-Church relics
	14.	Excavation permit fee
	15.	Comeaux Park handicapped accessibility
	16.	Park use
	17.	Po Boy sale
	18.	Capital outlay-airport
	Airport CIP Requesting Resolution 09-20-2022

	19.	Payment-rehab of t-hangar taxilanes
	20.	Change order-rehab of taxilanes
	21.	Special event permit
	1.	No old business
	Bottom

